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his own judgment about what he has heard, and there is no war-
ranty-that that Judgment shall be of the best or an absolutely cor-
rect judgment, and that is what we are asked to include within the
warranty by this defense. On the authority of Moulor v. Insurance
Co., 111 U. 8. 341, 4 Sup. Ct. 466, and Insurance Co. v. Raddin, 120
U. S ‘183, T Sup. Ct. 500, the learned judge at the circuit doubted
whether, undex the stmct rule, this contract should be taken as a
warranty, but did not decide that point, as we do not, since we
find that, being treated as a warranty, there has been, when prop-
erly construed, no breach of it. Baxter, the president of the bank,
had heard what we can now see was unfavorable, and that it would
have been advisable for the company to inquire about it; but, un-
der the then circumstances, it cannot be said that he reasonably
should have known that it was unfavorable, or advisable to make
inquiry, and this was left to his determination by the contract.
This was a limitation on the warranty itself, and lessened its scope
otherwise. We may add to what the learned trial judge. said, that
under the rulings in Penn Mut. Life Ins. Co. v. Mechanics’ Savmgs
Bank & Trust Co., 19 C. C. A. 286, 72 Fed. 413, the strict rule as
to disclosures which has been imported from the marine insurance
law, and which statutes so often bave abrogated as unjust, should
not be extended to these new policies; and on this ground all the
courts have held that the warranties shall be strictly construed, as
we do this.
After the anonymous letter was received, and Schardt had been
called before the bank officials, and, denymg the charge that he
had been speculating, had produced Wi_tnesses to disprove it, there
may have been rumors afloat, as the witnesses testify, perhaps
all traceable to that source; but there was no duty on the bank to
run down this kind of information, or to report it. It had not as-
sumed the business of a detective agency by the contract. It was
held in Surety Co. v. Pauly, 18 C. C.  A. 644, 72 Fed. 470, 476, un-
der a policy similar to this, but under another clause, which is also
found in this, requiring notice in writing of any act which may in-
volve a loss coming to the knowledge of the employer, that “knowl-
edge” and “suspicion” are not synonymous terms; that the bond
does not call for notice of suspicions, but only of a knowledge of
gome specific fraudulent or dishonest act. The same rule is ap-
plicable to the disclosure required under the clause we have in
hand, so far as it calls for “knowledge,” and to the clause in the
teller s bond requiring notice on “becommg aware” of speculation
and gambhng Mere rumors and suspicions are not ineluded, cer-
tainly, in the teller’s bond, and, for the reasons we have indicated,
we think not in the other, although it is broader, in requiring no-
tice of things “heard” as well as things known, It is not every-
thing heard that is required to be told, but only unfavorable habits
and associations, or matters important enough for inquiry. We
have already stated why these are not included, and the proof
ghows nothing more formidable than what we considered in that
connection. In the case of Supreme Council Catholic Knights of
America v. Fidelity & Casualty Co. (before cited) 11 C. C. A, 96,



GUARANTEE CO. V. MECHANICS’ §AV. BANK & TRUST CO. 785

63 Fed. 48, 57, the contract could not be affected by loose parol
statements or concealment of facts, about which no inquiry was
made, or by conduct upon which no reliance was placed, but only
by misrepresentation or fraudulent concealment provided against
ag a part of the agreement, Everywhere this rule is found, that it
is open to the insurer to be specific, and therefore mere entrapping
generalities will not be tolerated.

Objection is made to an item included in the report of the expert
bank examiners, on which the decree was rendered, of $5,992.35
of “overdrafts allowed and not authorized.” It is insisted that this
was not embezzlement or larceny. We do not know whether it
was or not. It might be, because embezzlement or larceny may
be committed through the process of overdrafts. This question
was not made by exceptions or passed on in the circuit court, and
was, it is said by counsel, only brought to attention there at the
time the decree was entered. It is evidently an afterthought, and
there being no proof showing the facts in relation to the overdrafts,
nor why they were by the examiners included, neither the trial court
nor this court can say they were not embezzlements or larcenies.
There is no proof to sustain this objection, which comes-too late.

Neither do we see any objection to the interest allowed. It is
urged that it does not appear that the bank could have made 6
per cent. on the lost money if it had not been stolen, since it did
not discover the thefts until 1893, and that the only basis for ad-
ding interest is to make good the loss of the use of the money in
the meantime. This is a mistaken view of the law of interest.
The Tennessee Code allows interest on bonds. Mill. & V. Code
Tenn. § 2702. If a policy of insurance be not included in this
statutory allowance when it takes the form of a bond as this does,
it may be allowed by the jury or the chancellor as “damages” for
money detained. Here the defendant company agreed to make
good the loss sustained by the fraudulent acts of the employé, and,
if Schardt had been sued, the jury or chancellor could have allowed
interest against him as part of the damages or “loss,” and this the
defendant company assured. Interest should be allowed from the
date of embezzlements, or from the end of each year, if the jury
or the chancellor choose, as he did here, to the filing of the proof of
loss, up to the penalty of the bond, but not beyond it, of course.
Then on this amount there could be no interest for three months,
since that sum is not due, by the terms of the contract, until three
months after filing proof of loss. But, if not then paid, it bears
interest as a debt due from that date, if allowed by the jury or
chancellor, when not given by statute. We think it should be al-
lowed in this case, whether given by statute or not. Being allowed,
it should be calculated to the date of the decree, as in other cases.
It will be so allowed here.

On the whole, we are satisfied with the decree of the circuit court,
and with the reasons given for-it, as found in the record, and re-
ported sub nomine Mechanics’ Sav. Bank & Trust Co. v. Guarantee
Co. of North America, 68 Fed. 459, and it will be affirmed.

80 F.—50
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W. A. VANDERCOOK ©O. v. VANCH et al,
(Circuit Oourt, D. South Carolina. May 31, 1897.)

}, INTOXI0ATING LIiQUORs—PoLIcE POWER OF STATES.

Any state may, in the exercise of the police power, declare that the manu-
facture, sale, barter, and exchange, or the use as a beverage, of alcoholic
liquors, are public evils, and, having thus declared, can forbid such manu-
facture, sale, barter, and exchange, or use within her territory.

2, BAME—INTERSTATE COMMERCE.

But when a state recognizes and approves the manufacture, sale, barter,
and exchange, and the use, as a beverage, of aleoholic liquors, and the state
itself encourages the manufacture, engages in the sale of, and provides for
the consumption of alcoholic liquors as a beverage, and so precludes the
idea that such manufacture, sale, barter, exchange, or use are injurious to
the public welfare, it is not a lawful exercise of the police power to forbid
the importation of such ligquors or thelr sale in original packages for personal
use and consumption.

8. SamE.
Such prohibition, under such circumstances, is in conflict with the laws
of interstate and foreign commerce.

& BAME—SOUTH CAROLINA DISPENSARY ACT.

The dispensary act of 1896, as amended by the act of 1897, Inasmuch as
it approves the purchase and manufacture of alcoholic liquors for the
state, and provifles for the sale of such alcoholic liquors as a beverage, in
aid of the finances of the state, in so far as it forbids the importation of
alcoholic liquors in original packages for personal use and consumption,
and the sale of such original packages for such use in this state, is in con-
flict with the laws of Interstate and foreign commerce, and is therefore
to that extent void.

Bryan & Bryan, for complainant.
Wm. A. Barber, Atty. Gen., and C. P. Townsend, Asst. Atty. Gen.,
for respondents.

SIMONTON, Circuit Judge. This is a bill in equity, filed by com-
plainant, a corporation of the state of California, against 8. W.
Yance, who is state commissioner under the dispensary law, and W.
N. Bahr and others, who are state constables appointed to put this
law in execution. The bill alleges that the complainant is the owner
of vineyards in the state of California, and that it manufactured from
grapes of such vineyards well-known pure wines, brandies, and other
liquors, particularly of clarets, Rhine wine, Burgundies, and cham-
pagne; that by its traveling agent the complainant took orders from
certain citizens and residents of the state of South Carolina, to de-
liver to each of them certain original packages of wines, etc., products
of its vineyards, filled said orders, and shipped from San Francisco
to Charleston, 8. C., by rail, a car load of its products, containing 73
separate original packages for each of its said customers, all marked -
with its name and address in California, adopting this mode of ship-
ping by car load in order to obtain a large reduction in freight; that
the goods so shipped arrived in Charleston, passing through the
hands of several common carriers in continuous route, and thereupon
were seized, without warrant, by defendants Bahr and Scott, and
60 of the packages were shipped by said constables to Columbia, to
John F. Gaston, then the state commissioner, got into his hands and
then into the hands of his successor, 8. W. Vance, with full notice of
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the unlawful seizure, and that Vance, notwithstanding, refuses to
deliver them to complainant or its agent after repeated demands,
and threatens to convert and sell the same to citizens of South Caro-
lina; that these same constables and others, claiming like authority,
threaten to seize in like manner all wines shipped by complainant
into this state, wherever found and for whatever purpose shipped,
arriving in said city of Charleston, and in like manner to ship and de-
liver the same to said 8. W. Vance, who likewise threatens to con-
vert the same, to the great damage of complainant, and to the ob-
struction and destruction of its lawful business and interstate com-
merce and trade in its wines, ete, with citizens and residents of
South Carolina. The bill then alleges the shipment of another im-
portation of wines, etc., in separate original packages from its
vineyards in California, upon orders from residents of South
Carolina, the arrival of the same in South Carolina, and the wrong-
ful seizure of the same by state constables; that other orders
have been obtained from other residents of South Carolina for
separate original packages, and that upon such orders complainant
proposes to ship such packages to South Carolina in due course of
interstate commerce; and that, in the future, it intends to seek gimi-
lar orders, and to ship thereupon similar original packages into the
state of South Carolina. The bill further alleges that it intends,
in the course of its business, further, and in addition to such ship-
ments so ordered by customers in advance, to ship also from San
Francisco, Cal., to its agent in the state of South Carolina, and to
store and warehouse in South Carolina, and to sell in the state of
South Carolina, in the original unbroken packages as imported, as
aforesaid, to residents in South Carolina, its wines and liquors, prod-
ucts of its vineyards, in the due and lawful exercise of its rights
under the constitution and laws of the United States, and that the
defendants threaten to seize, take, and carry away, convert and
sell all such shipments. The bill then charges that by the dispen-
sary act of 1897, under which the defendants seek to justify their
action, all wines, beers, ales, alcoholic and other intoxicating liguors
are the subjects of lawful manufacture, barter, sale, export, and im-
port in the state of South Carolina, and have been and are being and
will continue to be lawfully used and consumed as a beverage by citi-
zens and residents of the state of South Carolina, and that the
products of its vineyards are lawful subjects of interstate and foreign
trade and commerce. The bill then charges that the said dispensary
law, in so far as it authorizes the acts of the defendants, or in any
way attempts to abridge the right of importation of the products of
complainant’s vineyards into this state, and there to sell in original
packages, or in any wise hinders and prevents its intercourse, com-
merce, and trade with citizens and residents of South Carolina in the
products of its vineyards in such original packages, is in conflict
with the constitution of the United States, and is null and void. The
bill then alleges facts sustaining the jurisdiction of this court and
securing the jurisdiction of the United States supreme court, and
prays a temporary, to be followed by a permanent, injunection.

Upon the filing of the bill a rule was issued against the defendants
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to show cause why the injunction prayed for in the bill be not grant-
ed. "The return sets out three jurisdictional exceptions: First,
that ‘the bill presents no question arising under the constitution and
laws of the United States; second, that the bill is defective in its alle-
gations, and does not state a case coming within the jurisdiction of
this court;  third, that the bill presents no case for the jurisdiction
of a court of equity, as the plaintiff has a plain, adequate, and com-
plete remedy at law. The bare inspection of the bill shows these ob-
jections to be unfounded. The return then addressed itself to the
merits, It sets out clearly that the shipments made by complainant
were made by bill of lading to a gentleman in this state, in this be-
half selected as the agent of complainant, for distribution of the
packages and perhaps the receipt of the purchase money. It then
admits the main facts of the bill, and charges that the shipments
made by complainant and those contemplated by it, and the course of
dealing in the future which-it intends, are in contravention of the act
of assembly of 1897, the amendment to the dispensary law, and that,
under that act and the other acts which it amends, the course and
action of the state officials were justified, and were right and proper.
. This case brings up squarely the question: Has a producer of -
alcoholic liquors in another state the right, under the constitution
of the United States, in the present condition of the law of South
Carolina, to ship into that state his products in original packages,
and to sell them in the original packages, either upon orders sent
in advance of shipment or upon purchases made after shipment and
arrival? The question is one of grave importance. The very able
and exhaustive arguments of counsel on both sides have put the
court in possession of every argument which can be used upon it.
They have received the careful consideration which they and the
question to which they were addressed deserve.

Section 8, art. 1, of the constitution of the United States declares:

“The congress shall have power to * * * regulate commerce with foreign
 nations and among the several states, and with the Indian tribes. * * *’

The supreme court of the United States have now established by
a current of decisions, which cannot be misunderstood, that under
this section congress alone has the right to fix, prescribe, and regu-
late interstate commerce and foreign commerce, and that no one of
the states can in any way interfere with such commerce or prescribe
any regulation thereof without the consent of congress. While, by
virtue of its jurisdiction over persons and property within its limits,
a state may provide for the security of lives, limbs, health, and com-
fort of persons, and the protection of property so situated, yet a sub-
ject-matter which has been confided exclusively to congress by the
constitution is not within the jurisdiction of the police power of the
state unless placed there by congressional action. Henderson v,
Mayor, 92 U. 8. 259; Railroad Co. v. Husen, 95 U. 8. 465; Walling
v. People, 116 U, 8. 466, 6 Sup. Ct. 454; Robbins v. Taxing Dist.,
120 T. 8, 489, 7 Sup. Ct. 592. Inasmuch as interstate commerce,
congisting in the transportation, purchase, sale, and exchange of com-
modities, is national in its character, and must be governed by a uni-
form system, so long as congress does not pass any law to regulate
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it or allows the state to do so, it thereby indicates its will that such
commerce shall be free and untrammeled. Mobile Co. v. Kimball,
102 U. 8. 691; Brown v. Houston, 114 U. 8, 622, 5 Sup. Ct. 1091;
Wabash, 8t. L. & P. Ry. Co. v. People, 118 U. 8, 557, 7 Sup. Ct. 4.

The application of this doctrine to the effect of state legislation
upon the importation of alcoholic liquors into a state came up for
discussion and decision in Leisy v. Hardin, 135 U. 8. 100, 10 Sup. Ct.
681. That case arose under the prohibition laws of Iowa. Section
1523 of the Code of Iowa provided:

“No person shall manufacture or sell by himself, clerk, steward or agent,
directly or indirectly, any intoxicating liquors, except as hereinafter provided.
And the keeping of intoxicating liquor with intent upon the part of the owner
thereof or any person acting under his authority or by his permission, to sel
the same within this state, contrary to the provisions of this chapter, is hereby
prohibited, and the intoxicating liquor so kept, together with the vessels in
which it is contained, is declared a nuisance and shall be forfeited and dealt
with as hereinafter provided.”

Chapter 71, Acts Towa 1888, provided:

“That after this act takes effect no person shall manufacture for sale, sell,
keep for sale, give away, exchange, barter or dispense any intoxicating liquor
for any purpose whatever, otherwise than ig provided in this act. Persons hold-
ing permits as herein provided shall be authorized to sell and dispense intoxi-
cating liguors for pharmaceutical and medicinal purposes, and alcohol for
specified chemical purposes, and wine for sacramental purposes, but for no
other purposes whatever.”

The act then provides for the issue of permits for this purpose by
the digtrict court of the county, which permits hold good for one year.

These provisons being in full force, Leisy & Co., brewers in Peorla,
1L, shipped into Xowa, by rail, to Keokuk sundry barrels of beer in
original packages, and sold and offered for sale in Keokuk, only in
unbroken original packages, this beer. Thereupon it was seized and
held subject to the laws of Iowa above quoted. The cause went up
through the several state courts into the supreme court of the United
States. By that court the case was held under deliberation, and
finally the opinion was pronounced by the chief justice as the organ
of the court. The points to be decided are thus put:

“That ardent spirits, distilled liquors, ale, and beer are subjects of exchange,
barter, and traffie, like any other commodity in which a right of traffic exists,
and are so recognized by the usages of the commercial world, the laws of
congress, and the decisions of the courts, is not denied. Being thus articles of
commercé, can a state, in the absence of legislation on the part of congress,

prohibit their importation from abroad or from a sister state, or, when im-
ported, prohibit tbeir sale by the importer?”

In answering these questions the court goes into a full and elabo-
rate examination of all the authorities. The conclusion is expressed
in these words:

“The pleintiffs in error are citizens of Illinols, are not pharmacists, and have
no permit [the prerequisites of the Iowa act], but import beer into Iowa,
which they sell in original packages. Under our decisfon In Bowman v. Rail-
way Co. {125 U. S. 465, 8 Sup. Ct. 689, 1062], they had the right to import the
beer into that state, and in the view we have expressed they had the right to
sell it, by which act alone it would become mingled in the common mass of
property within the state. Up to that point of time we hold that, in the ab-
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sense of congressional permission to do so, the state had no power to Interfere,
by selzure or any other action, in prohibition of importation and sale by the for-
eign or nonresident importer.”

Upon the publication of this opinion, the congress, recognizing its
force, enacted the act of August 8, 1890, commonly known as the
“Wilson Act.” That act is in these WOI'dS‘

“That all fermented, distilled or other intoxicating liquors or lquids trans-
ported into any state or territory or remaining therein for use, consumption,
sale or storage therein, shall, upon arrival in such state or territory, be subject
to the operation and effect of the laws of such state or territory enacted in the
exercise of its police powers, to the same extent and in the same manner as
though such liquids or liquors had been produced in such state or territory,
and shall not be exempt therefrom by reason of being lntroduced therein in
original packages or otherwise.”

The case of Leigy v. Hardin is discussed in Plumley v. Massachu-
setts, 155 U. 8. 461, 15 Sup. Ct. 154, and in Emert v. Missouri, 156 U.
8. 321, 15 Sup. Ct. 367, in which case, also, the act of 1890 is men-
tioned.

The controlling question in the case before us is: How does the
Wilson act affect the South Carolina statute? In the recent case
of Scott v. Donald, 165 U. 8. 58, 17 Sup. Ct. 265, a case from this
circuit under the dispensary law as it stood before the passage of
the present act, the supreme court discussed the dispensary law, and
condemned it. They hold that the Wilson aet did not protect it.
This case of Scott v. Donald was brought because of the seizure and
confiscation of certain alcoholic: liquors, products of other states,

“imported by the plaintiff for his personal use. The conclusion of
the supreme court, after full discussion of all the cases bearing upon

. the question, is:
“In the light of these cases, the act of South Carolina of January 2, 1895

[dispensary law], must, as to those of its provisions which affect the plaintiff
in the present suits, be condemned.” 165 U. 8. 99, 17 Sup. Ct. 272.

This act of 1895 was amended in 1896, and when this decision was
published the law was further amended in 1897, and this case will
turn on these amendments. Have the amendments cured the ob-
jectionable features in the act of 1895? In Scott v. Donald, the
supreme court say of the act of 1895:

“It is important to observe that the statute does not purport to prohibit either
the importation, the manufacture, the sale, or the use of intoxicating liquors.
The first section does indeed make it penal to manufacture, sell, barter, deliver,
store, or keep In possession any spirituous, malt, vinous, fermented, brewed,
or other liquors, which contain alcohol and are used as a beverage, except as
hereinafter provided, and declares all such liquors contraband. * * * Yet
these enactments are not absolute, but are made subject to the subsequent
provisions of the act. When these provisions are examined we find that, so
far from the importation, manufacture, and sale of such liquors being prohib-
ited, these operations are turned over to state functionaries, by whom alone, or
under whose direction, they are carried on.”

The amending act of 1897 contains provisions almost identical
in language, exactly identical in effect. The act of 1897 amends sec-
tion 3 of the act of 1895, and still further amends sections 15 and
23, which had been amended by the act of 1896, removing from these
last two sections features of discrimination. But these changes in
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no wise meet the criticism of the supreme court of the act of 1895,
This criticism was not on these discriminations only. The court
says:

“In view of these and similar provisions, it 18 indisputable that, whatever
else may be said of this act, it was not intended to prohibit the manufacture,
sale, and use of intoxicating liquors. On the contrary, liqguors and wines are

recognized as commodities which may be lawfully made, bought and sold, and
must therefore be deemed the subject of foreign and interstate commerce.”

Section 2 provides that the state board of control shall purchase
all liquors for sale in this state. Section 3, after providing for the
appointment of a commissioner, prescribes how he shall furnish
liquors to the county dispensers for sale. Section 7 provides for
county dispensers, who shall sell liquors. Section 15 provides for
granting licenses to manufacture liquors. Section 23 provides for
a regular quarterly report from all licensed distillers. These sections
in the act of 1897 sustain the criticism of the supreme court. It
is clear that, before the state can forbid the importation and sale in
original packages of alcoholic liquors, it must declare the manufac-
ture, sale, and use as a beverage of all alcoholic liquors to be contra-
band and forbidden, and so take them out of the category of legiti-
mate articles of commerce. She cannot, for her own purposes, treat
these liquors as the subject of foreign and interstate commerce, and
declare them not to be such to the rest of the world.

The appalling statistics of misery, pauperism, and crime which
have their origin and owe their existence to the use or abuse of
alcoholic spirits are the justification for police regulations with re-
gard to them, and place them under the control of the police power.
Considerations of public safety, the supreme law, override every
other, and measures, however drastic, which prevent the existence of
this evil, will be sanctioned and enforced. But when the state
herself, for her own purposes, furnishes to her citizens these alco-
holic spirits, encourages them in their use, puts them at conven-
ient places within her territory for the supply and distribution of
them, enters largely into the business, calculating the profit therefrom
as aiding state, county, and municipal treasuries, regulations which
would properly be attributable to the police power if used in sup-
pression of the traffic assume the form of measures tending te sup-
port the state’s monopoly in the business, act as restrictions upon
commerce, and infringe the federal constitution. If all alcoholic
liquors, by whomsoever held, are declared contraband, they cease
to belong to commerce, and are within the jurisdietion of the police
power. But so long as their manufacture, purchase, or sale, or
their use as a beverage in any form or by any person, are recognized,
they belong to commerce, and are without the domain of the police
power. The act of 1897, like the act of 1895, is condemned on these
prineiples. Neither of them is within exercise of the police power.

But, while it is true that some of the discriminating features are
now removed from the dispensary,—features admitted to be fatal to
‘its constitutionality,—one at least still remains. The markets of
thig state are closed to the producers in other states. Minnesota v.
Barber, 136 U. 8. 326, 10 Sup. Ct. 862. They are closed, it is true.
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to the producers in this state. But the latter may be under the
control of the laws of commerce within the state. The former are
protected by the interstate commerce law. It is no justification
that laws in conflict with interstate commerce press equally on the
citizen and the stranger., Minnesota v. Barber, supra. A resident
of the state may, under the present dispensary law, send his orders
to a producer outside of the state for liquors for his own personal
use and consumption, and a limited importation within a restricted
period and under an absolute condition is allowed such resident.
The producer is limited to this. He cannot import his goods into
this state in any other way. The condition for such importation is
this: Any resident who ‘desires to import liquor for his own per-
sonal use and consumption shall first certify to the chemist of the
South Caroling .College the quantity and kind of liquor he wishes to
import, with the name and address of the person from whom he
wishes to purchase, stating, also, that such proposed purchaser will
forward to Columbia, 8. C., to said chemist, a sample of the liquor.
On receipt of the sample the chemist immediately proceeds to test it,
and, if found to be pure and free from any poisonous, hurtful, or
deleterious matter, he issues a certificate to that effect, giving names
of proposed consignor and consignee, and the quantity and kind of
liquor to be imported, sends it free of expense and postpaid to the
consignor, and the liquor can be shipped within 60 days after the
date of the certificate, which can be nsed once only.

It will be noted that the use of alcoholic liquors as a beverage is
not prohibited, nor is their importation for personal use forbidden,
provided such beverages are free from “poisonous, hurtful, and dele-
terious matter,” other than the alcohol in them. The act provides
the essential and conclusive test on this point,—the certificate of the
chemist of the South Carolina College. The act also declares all
alcoholiec liquors not tested by the chemist of the South Carolina
College, and so found to be free “from poisonous, hurtful, and dele-
terious matters,” necessarily matters other than the alcoholic ingre-
dients, to be of a detrimental character, and their use and con-
sumption to be against the morals, good health, and safety of the
state; that is to say, without any regard whatever to their real
character, the presence or absence of the certificate is the sole test.
This can be sustained only on the fact that it is a valid inspection
law.

There can be no doubt that a state can enact laws protecting its
citizens in the purchase of articles, imported or domestie, from pur-
chasing something they did not intend to buy, or adulterated, so as
to threaten disease or death. Plumley v. Massachusetts, 155 U. S.
461, 15 Sup. Ct. 154. But it must be a law which protects or at
least tends to protect the citizen. It must give him security. If it
does not do so absolutely, still it must contribute to secure him.
The mode of inspection in this act is by sample. Let it be supposed
that the sample has been furnished, has been inspected, has been
approved, and that the certificate has been sent to the consignor;
what sort of assurance does it give the citizen that this liquor he
thereupon receives accords with, comes up to, or in any wise re-
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sembles the sample? What protection does it give the citizen from
fraud from a failure to send liquor according to sample? None
whatever. It only subjects him to the seizure and forfeiture of his
goods, if, perchance, they should be inspected. The fraudulent seller
is out of reach. Upon what, then, must the citizen rely? He can
only rely upon the business character, standing, and integrity of the
person from whom he buys, without any regard whatever to the in-
spection. This so-called inspection, furnishing no security to the
citizen, cannot thereby be justified. It can operate only as a re-
striction upon, and hindrance and burden to, his acknowledged right
to import for his persoral use. It is thus an interference with
interstate commerce, and in itself veid.

The language in Mugler v. Kansas, 123 U. 8. 623, 8 Sup. Ct. 273,
has some application here:

“If a statute purporting to have been enacted to protect the public health,
the public morals, or the. public safety, has no real or substantial relation to
those objects, or is & palpable invasion of rights secured by the fundamental

law, it is the duty of courts so to abridge them, and thereby give effect to the
constitution,”

The same mode of inspection by sample would seem to be used
in all the liquors issued by the state commissioner. 22 St. at Large
541,

In Scott v. Donald the supreme court, discussing a similar feature
in the act of 1895, says: ‘

“To empower a state chemist to pass upon what the law calls ‘the alcoholie

purity’ of such importations by chemical analysis can scarcely come within any
definition of a reasonable inspection law.”

If, then, this mode of inspection be not reasonable, and be futile,
it is a burden on interstate commerce, and in itself makes the pro-
vision void. Railroad Co. v. Husen, 95 U. 8. 465; Walling v. Mich-
igan, 116 U. B. 446, 6 Sup. Ct. 454; Minnesota v. Barber, 136 U. 8.
313, 10 Sup. Ct. 862; Brimmer v. Rebman, 138 U. 8, 78, 11 Sup. Ct.

13. .

It is manifest, therefore, that the same conclusion must be reached
with regard to the dispensary act of 1897 which was reached by the
supreme court of the United States as to the act of 1895,—that it is
not within the scope and operation of the Wilson act. This being
the case, the law laid down in Leisy v. Hardin controls this case, and
the attempt to forbid the importation and sale of spirituous liquors
in original packages must fail. The decision of the supreme court
of the United States must control all circuit courts. By this decision
it is clear that, so long as the state herself engages in the business
of importing and selling alcoholi¢ liquors for the purposes of profit,
so long as she recognizes that the use of alcoholic liquors as a bev-
erage is lawful and can be encouraged, so long as she seeks a monop-
oly in supplying these liquors for that use, and in this way looks to
an increase in her revenue, she cannot, under her constitutional obli-
gations to the other states of this Union, forbid, control, hinder, and
burden commerce in such articles between their citizens and her own.

Let a temporary injunction issue as prayed for in the bill.
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HILLER et al. v. LADD et al.
(CIrcult Court, D. Oregon. April 16, 1897.)

L TRUBTS—SALE OF STOOK—AUTHORITY FROM PROBATE COURT.

When stock has been transferred by the owner to a truste. for the pur-
pose of enabling a sale of it to be made, with the stock of other parties, to
good advantage, it is not necessary that a sale of such stock, made by the
trustee after the death of the owner, should be authorized by the probate
court, under the provisions of the California statute.

2, EQurtYy JURISDICTION—CONSENT DECREE OF PROBATE COURT. ]
A court of equity has no jurisdiction to set aside a stipulation of parties
pursuant to which a decree of distribution of the estate of a deceased per-
son has been made by a probate court, nor to cancel, set aside, or modify
such decree, nor to compel an account for what has been received under
such distribution, which would, in effect, set aside the decree by indirection,

8. ACCOUNTING—EVIDENCE.
Upon an examination of the evidence as to the dealings between the par-
ties in this case, feld, that the complainant established no right to an ac-
‘counting by the defendants.

Philip D. Galpin and J. B. Cleland, for plaintiffs.
C. E. 8. Wood, C. A. Dolph, and T. C. Dutro, for defendants.

BELLINGER, District Judge. This is a suit in equity for an ac-
counting. J. W. Ladd died on the 28th of February, 1871, leaving
a widow, the complainant, Sarah F. Hiller, with whom is joined as
complainant her present husband, D. Albert Hiller. J. W. Ladd, at
the time of his death and for many years prior thereto, resided in San
Francisco, Cal,, where he was engaged in different enterprises of a
speculative character, in many of which he was associated with his
brother, W. 8. Ladd, of Portland, Or. The latter died on January
14, 1893, leaving a large estate, which was disposed of by will in
which the respondents herein were named as executors. Among the
enterprises in which J. W. and W. 8, Ladd were interested was that
of the Oregon Steam Navigation Company, an Oregon corporation,
which company they, with a number of other persons, controlled and
directed. = At the death of J. W. Ladd he was the owner of 7,600
ghares in the stock of said company, standing in the name of Alvinza
Hayward, of San Francisco, Cal. In his last will, J. W, Ladd ex-
pressed the utmost confidence in the ability and integrity of his broth-
er, W. 8. Ladd, in whose hands he requested his wife to place her
property and estate, to manage and invest for her. The will also con-
tained the following clause: “It is my desire and request that the
property acquired before my marriage be considered and treated as
community, and not as separate, property.” TUpon probate of ihis
will, W. 8. Ladd, J. M. French, and the complainant, now Sarah F.
Hiller, were appointed executors of J. W. Ladd’s estate.

It is alleged, in effect, that complainant was ignorant of her hus-
band’s business, and permitted W. 8. Ladd, as executor, to have ex-
clusive control of her husband’s estate; that he procured an instru-
ment of trust in his favor, under which he took possession, manage-
ment, and control of all her property and business; that he fraud-
ulently, and by means of threats of expensive litigation, induced her
to sign an agreement by which the will of J. W. Ladd was construed
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to give her but one-half of the entire estate, including her community
property, instead of one-half of the residue, excluding such property,
and that he procured a decree of distribution in accordance with such
agreement during her absence in Europe; that he fraudulently omit-
ted from the inventory of J. W. Ladd’s estate 7,600 shares of the
stock of the Oregon Steam Navigation Company, belonging to it,
and standing in the name of Alvinza Hayward, and concealed such
ownership from her, except as to 950 shares, which he falsely pre-
tended he had purchased from C. E. Tilton for $33,250; that on
April 2, 1872, J. W. Ladd being then dead, three-fourths of the stock
of the company was sold to the Northern Pacific Railroad Company,
at 40 cents on the dollar, one-half in cash and the balance in bonds
of the railroad at 90 cents of their par value; that the estate of J. W.
Ladd was represented at this sale by W. 8. Ladd, yet he did not in
fact deliver any of the 7,600 shares belonging to the estate until the
Banic of 1873, when, the Northern Pacific Railroad Company having

ecome insolvent, and its bonds valueless, he craftily attempted to
substitute the stock of the estate for his own stock, delivered on the
sale, and contrived entries in the books of Mrs. Hiller, kept by him,
by which the estate’s ownership of the 7,600 shares was concealed,
and it was made to appear that the 950 shares were purchased from
C. E. Tilton at an expense to the estate of $33,250; that he deceived
her as to the terms of the sale of the 950 shares, which was made to
Henry Villard in 1879, with the stock of the other owners, and falsely
represented that such sale was for $50 per share, and no more, al-
though in fact the price paid included an additional $50 per share in
stocks and bonds; that W. 8. Ladd subsequently admitted this decep-
tion, and delivered the stocks and bonds to which complainant was
entitled; that the fraudulent scheme of W. 8. Ladd was not discov-
ered by her until 1893; that it was known, when J. W. Ladd died, that
he left a large estate, and W. 8. Ladd did not dare to omit said 7,600
shares of stock from the inventory of the estate without substituting
other values therefor, and he therefore substituted a pretended prom-
issory note of Alvinza Hayward, for $190,000, dated March 1, 1870,
but upon which no payments of interest had been made, thereby pre-
tending that such a note had been given as for a purchase of said
stock; that all this was untrue, and was fraudulently planned by W.
S. Ladd to conceal the estate’s ownership of such stock; that from
time to time, while the estate was being administered, W. 8. Ladd
received dividends on the stock so concealed, which he credited on
the note as payments of interest thereon, although in fact no such
note was made by Hayward, and no interest was ever paid on ac-
count of it. And the complainant further alleges that, shortly after
the failure of Jay Cooke, a syndicate was formed to repurchase the
stock so sold to said Jay Cooke, in which syndicate were represented
W. 8. Ladd, 8. G. Reed, R. R. Thompson, J. C. Ainsworth, and C.
E. Tilton, and at the time of the failure of said Jay Cooke, which took
place on the 17th day of September, 1873, the said W. 8. Ladd, R.
R. Thompson, J. C. Ainsworth, S. G. Reed, and C. E. Tilton were
either directors of, or controlled the directors of, said Oregon Steam
Navigation Company, and that they so managed or caused the affairs
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of said corporation to be so managed that, in the year 1874, by with.
holding- dividends, the value of its stock was greatly reduced, and
the syndicate purchased and divided into six equal parts 26,548 shares,
at an average price of $13 per share; that one of the parts or in-
terests was on account of the estate of J. W. Ladd, and was taken
in the name of E. Quackenbush or J. C. Ainsworth, trustee; that,
if it was true, as W. 8. Ladd falsely pretended, that complainant’s
stock was sold to Jay Cooke, then it became his duty to buy back
said stock for complainant upon the same terms on which he bought
back stock for himself, for which purpose he had sufficient means be-
longing to complainant; that, on said stock so purchased for said
complainant as aforesaid by said syndicate, said W. 8. Ladd received
all the dividends which were declared thereon from and after the
date of said repurchase down to the time of the sale of said stock
to said Henry Villard, and that said dividends amounted to the sum
of about $53,698; that on the 23d of May, 1879, said syndicate sold
to Henry Villard said shares of said stock, for which said Villard paid
50 per cent. of the par value thereof in cash, less a small sum re-
served to pay prior debts of said corporation, and the other 50 per
cent. in stocks and bonds taken at the par value thereof; that the
profits of the estate of J. W. Ladd on the purchase and sale of said
shares of stock so bought and sold for the benefit of said estate were
about $384,888, besides the dividends which accrued on said stocks
from the time of said purchase to the date of the sale to said Henry
Villard, with interest on bonds, and dividends and premiums on each
received on Villard sale, with interest on the same, which amounted
to $974,334; and the profits on the three-fourths thereof belonging to
said complainant is about $959,417, all of which came into the hands
of said W. 8. Ladd, and thereafter into the hands of these defend-
ants, and have never been accounted for to said complainant.

The charge, made in the bill of complaint, to the effect that in the
sale of stock held by Hayward to Jay Cooke, for the Northern Pacific
Railroad Company, none of the 7,600 shares belonging to the estate
of J. W. Ladd was delivered, but that such stock was retained until
the panic of 1873, when, the Northern Pacific Railroad Company
and Jay Cooke having become insolvent, W. 8. Ladd craftily sub-
stituted or attempted to substitute the stock of the estate in lieu of
his own stock sold to Jay Cooke, and contrived entries in Mrs. Hil-
ler’s books to that end, is not supported by any evidence in the case;
but, on the contrary, these charges are conclusively disproved. It is,
in effect, conceded to be the fact that the estate of J. W. Ladd was
represented in that sale, and shared in whatever benefits accrued to
it equally with all the other parties concerned, and it is beyond dis-
pute that, in that sale, W. 8. Ladd did not in fact act for the estate
of J. W. Ladd, but that the sale and transfer of threé-fourths of the
stock of the Oregon Steam Navigation Company was by Hayward,
acting for all the stockholders, including himself, and was in pursu-
ance of an understanding had in the lifetime of J. W. Ladd, and con-
curred in if not planned by him, by which the entire stock of the
Oregon Steam Navigation Company was to be sold to the Northern
Pacific Railroad Company, if such a sale could be effected upon favor-
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able terms. It also appears beyond question and is in effect con-
ceded by complainants, that all the proceeds of that sale have been
fully accounted for to the estate of J. W. Ladd, and that the Hay-
ward note for $190,000, was not a pretended note fraudulently sub-
stituted in the inventory of J. W. Ladd’s estate by W. 8. Ladd, to
conceal from Mrs.. Hiller the estate’s ownership of the 7,600 shares of
stock in Hayward’s hands, but that J. W. Ladd, belng in failing
health, himself contrived the expedient of substltutmg Hayward’s

note for this stock, so that, in the event of his death, the stock might
be held and the proposed 'sale had without recourse to the probate
court, with the attendant publicity and possible complications, which
would likely embarrass the pool in its proposed deal. By this con-
trivance, which was carried out, the note took the place of the stock
in the inventory, and the avails of the stock were accounted for to
the executors and credited as payments on the note. The explana-
tion as to how these charges came to be made is that complainants
were misled-by the manner in which the accounts of Mrs. Hiller were
kept by W. 8. Ladd, and by the refusal of the executors of his es-
tate to permit an mspectlon of the books of Ladd & Tilton, and were
not apprised of the truth as to these matters until it was disclosed
by the testimony taken in the case. There is no testimony tending
to support the charge that W. 8. Ladd, by threats or other means,
. induced Mrs. Hiller to execute the agreement relating to the con-
struction of her husband’s will, or that the trust instrument was be-
cause of his undue influence, or that he procured the decree of dis-
tribution of the assets of the estate, or that she was in any way sub-
. jected to his control. It is contended, however, that the sale and
transfer by Hayward of the stock of the estate was illegal, because
not authorized by an order of the probate court of the county of San
Francisco, having probate of the will of J. W. Ladd, as required by
the laws of California, and that W. 8. Ladd, because of his relation
as cne of the executors of the estate, is liable to account for the value
of the stock so illegally disposed of, and that this value is to be de-
termined by the highest price for which this stock has subsequently
been sold in the market. To this same end is the further complaint
that Mrs. Hiller alone of all the owners of Oregon Steam Navigation
stock was not allowed to come into the pool formed for the repur-
chase of this stock and to share in the profits of the sale made to
Henry Villard in 1879, except as to the unsold 950 shares remaining
at that time, her claim being that it was the duty of W. 8. Ladd,
as her trustee to buy back said stock for her upon the same terms
apon which he, with others, bought for themselves, as she alleges he
could have done with her moneys and securities then in his hands.
It is contended for complainant, Mrs. Hiller, that she did not know of
the existence of the 7,600 shares in Hayward’s hands, and that she
was kept in ignorance of the fact, and of the sale of three-fourths of
that stock to Jay Cooke by W. 8. Ladd, whose duty it was to have
apprised her of these matters, and to have prevented the sale to Jay
Cooke unless the same was authorized by the court of probate of the
county of San Franeisco. The correspondence between W. 8, Ladd,
Mrs. Hiller, the complainant, Joe French, and Charles Tilton, then
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of the firm of Ladd & Tilton, covering a period of many years, is
in evidence, and is relied upon to prove that W. 8. Ladd, Tilton, and
French were acting in concert to keep from Mrs. Hiller all knowledge
of this property. None of these letters refer in terms to this stock,
and to this fact complainant attaches much importance. It is claimed
in her behalf that the books of acecount kept for Mrs. Hiller by W.
8. Ladd were obscure, and that the entries were so contrived as to
conceal the truth as to this stock, and that to the same end W. 8.
Ladd mutilated these books by cutting out some of their leaves.

As to these matters the following facts appear: The Oregon Steam
Navigation Company had a capital of $2,000,000, divided into 4,000
shares of $500 each. Later, and in November, 1868, this stock was
increased to $5,000,000, divided into 50,000 shares of $100 each. In
the meantime the Northern Pacific Railroad Company had been au-
thorized, by an act of congress approved July 2, 1864, to build a
branch of its road down the valley of the Columbia to a point near
Portland, and, by joint resolution passed in December, 1869, congress
authorized the construction of the main line of the road via the
Columbia river to Puget Sound. It is probable that the increase of
the capital stock of the Oregon Steam Navigation Company was with
the view of a sale of that property to the Northern Pacific Railroad
Company. The owners of the navigation company feared the effect
upon their company of the construction of the railroad line, and took
steps looking to a sale to the railroad about this time. The principal
stockholders were J. C. Ainsworth, 8. G. Reed, R. R. Thompson,
W. 8. and J. W. Ladd, Coe, Olmstead, Ruckle, and Bradford. In
pursuance of a plan arranged between Ainsworth, Reed, Thompson,
and the Ladds, it was given out that Alvinza Hayward of San Fran-
cisco, a capitalist of much wealth, was buying up the stock of the
navigation company with the intention of controlling it, and a letter
was written by Hayward to Ainsworth declaring this intention with
suspicious bluntness. The holdings of those concerned were speedily
transferred, with the exception of a few shares, necessary to qualify
the directors to continue in office, to Hayward. Much, if not all,
of this stock, being the new issue under the organization,—at least,
. that of J. W. Ladd,—was issued directly to Hayward by the company.
Olmstead, Coe, Bradford, Ruckle, and other holders of stock, act-
ing upon the assumption that Hayward had secured a majority of the
stock, sold their holdings to him. There were thus issued to Hay-
ward 48,125 of the 50,000 shares of the navigation company’s stock,
all of which belonged to the pool, including Hayward, who had 2,500
shares in his own right for the part taken by him in the deal. J.
W. Ladd’s interest in the pool comprised 7,600 shares. Hayward
was the intimate friend of J. W. Ladd, and it is claimed, and is prob-
ably the fact, although of no particular importance, that the latter
originated the scheme by which the pool acquired the entire stock
of the navigation company. It is claimed that one of the objects of
this transfer of stock was to facilitate the sale of the property, but
the fact that it had the effect to transfer the stock of the other hold-
ers to the pool is a sufficient explanation of the object with which it
was done. Neither party bas any advantage over the other in re.
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spect to this transaction, the morals of which are not involved in
this suit. There is no doubt but that the stock of the Ladds was con-
tinued in Hayward’s hands in trust, to be sold by him in the sale
for which negotiations were pendmg Such an arrangement, so far
as the interest of J. W. Ladd was concerned, was important, in view
of the precarious state of his health and the necessity of so placing
the stock that the proposed sale would not be jeopardized by his
death,

Another reason for this trust was suggested by complamant’
counsel on the argument, and is supported by testimony in the case.
The stockholders had been vexed by litigation, which is frequently
referred to in correspondence in the case as the “blackmail suits.”
Some of this litigation grew out of the construction of a steamship,
in which J. W. Ladd had an important part. The fear, and possibly
the threat, of other suits made it desirable to these stockholders to
conceal their interest in the company. There was a further motive
for the course taken in the fact that Ben Holladay was threatening
to establish an opposition line of boats. Hayward’s relations to Hol-
laday were understood to be of such a character as to remove all
danger of opposition where Hayward was concerned. So that there
were adequate motives for the transfer to Hayward and for the con-
cealment thereafter in his name of the stock held in trust by him;
and this explains the guarded character of the correspondence be-
tween the parties with reference to their stock. The letters from W.
8. Ladd to Mrs. Hiller were not exceptional in this respect. All that
passed between the other parties in interest had the same peculiarity.
It is apparent that the writers of these letters were not trying to
conceal anything from each other. It is probable that they were
guarding against a possible future use of their correspondence as evi-
dence of the real character of the Hayward deal. After a lapse of
25 years, and when all the participators in the transaction, except
Hayward, Thompson, and Tilton, are dead, not an admission can be
had from either of these except Tilton, who remembers but little.
Hayward’s memory is a total blank, and Thompson stoutly main-
tains in his testimony that he knows nothing about the pool, and
does not know that Hayward held stock in trust; that the transfer
was bona fide; and that the stock he subsequently took from Hay-
ward was by actual purchase.

The removal of leaves from the books of account kept for Mrs. Hiller
is explained by the witness Quackenbush. It was in keeping with
the course of conduct pursued with reference to the stock of the Ore-
gon Steam Navigation Company by the members of the pool in their
correspondence. These books were originally opened by Quacken-
bush, who was cashier of the bapk of Ladd & Tilton. The sale to
Jay Cooke had taken place, and the proceeds of the sale were being
collected by Tilton. It was not desirable to have it appear that
the money received from Tilton for the estate came from the Oregon
Steam Navigation stock, and the books as opened by Quackenbush
would lead to this disclosure. So the account was changed to its
present form, and three of the first leaves in the ledger kept for one
of the parties, and four in the ledger kept for the other, were cut out
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by Quackenbush. W. 8. Ladd suggested the change in the form of
the account, but had nothing to do with the removal of the leaves.
Only two items of the account were changed. Quackenbush gives
a transcript of the missing leaves, showing the account as it was orig-
inally entered. The stock and bonds appearing in the original ac-
count is in large part transformed in the altered account into an
indebtedness due the estate from Charles Tilton. The assets of the
egtate were not in the least diminished by the change, which was
merely one of form. The effect of the removal of these leaves from
the two ledgers was of no consequence, except to those who might
try to use these books to prove ownership of the stock in question in
a proceeding to establish liability against such owners, or to set
agide transfers induced by the device of the pretended Hayward sale.
The mutilation of books of account is not a promising means of con-
cealing the misappropriation of funds. It is not probable that W.
8. Ladd would resort to such an expedient to conceal a fraud. Such
an act on the part of a man of business shrewdness does not indicate
a consciousness of wrong, but the reverse.

As to the point, urged in complainant’s behalf, that the sale by
Hayward of three-fourths of the stock held by him in trust for J. W.
Ladd without an order of the probate court was illegal, and that W.
8. Ladd, having permitted such a sale, is to be held as for a conver-
sion of this stock, I am of the opinion that an order of the probate
court was not necessary. This stock had been issued to Hayward,
and he was its legal owner as trustee, No act of J. W. Ladd, if
living, could add to the completeness of that title. If the right to
revoke the trust existed, this “does not in any degree affect the title
to the property. That passes to the donee, and remains vested for
the purposes of the trust, notwithstanding the existence of a right to
revoke it.” Stone v. Hackett, 12 Gray, 227. The case of Huse v.
Den, 85 Cal. 390, 24 Pac. 790, is cited in support of the contention
that an.order of the probate court authorizing this sale was necessary
to its validity. That was a case where the executors of an estate
undertook to sell it without the authority of the probate court. The
court held that the will in that case gave no power -to sell real prop-
erty. Moreover, the deceased had in his lifetime executed a deed
conveying the property to his brother and himself in trust for the
benefit of the grantor’s children. It was held that the intent of the
grantor must govern, and that this deed was intended to be, and must
have the effect of, a settlement for the benefit of such children. This
intention was not affected by the will. The purchasers knew of the
deed of trust and the provisions of the will, and of the want of power
of the executors 10 sell without an order of the probate court, and pur-
chased in the face of this knowledge. Of course, no title could pass
under such a sale, nor could any equity arise in favor of the purchas-
ers.” In the case of In re Radovich’s Estate, 74 Cal. 536, 16 Pac.
321, also cited by complainants, there was a sale of stock which came
into the executor’s hands without an order of the probate court, and
the court held that there was a conversion, and that the executor
was liable to the estate for the value of the stock with legal interest.
In the present case the sale was by a trustee having the legal title.
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Hayward was in law the owner of this stock. There was no limita-
tion upon his power to sell. On the contrary, the stock was held by
him for that express purpose. And this trust included the stock of
other persons, by whose concurrent action the trust was created. The
rights and interests of the several beneficiaries were mutual. Hay-
ward had an interest, coupled with the trust. He was a beneﬁcla.ry
in the sale which he was authorized to make of the stock pooled in his
hands, and therefore it was his right, as well as his duty, to sell. In
the case of Bedell v. Scoggins (Cal) 40 Pac. 954, the supreme court of
California held that the payment of money to be expended in payment
of the funeral expenses of the pergson making the pa,yment where the
expenditure had been made in good faith, created a trust in the person
to whom the payment was made, which was not extinguished by the
deathi of the trustor. The court, in its opinion, referred to the fact
that the probate court had not dlsapproved the payments made by
the trustee. In that case-the question was whether the trustee
should be answerable for the money paid him by the trustor, and ap-
plied by him after her death as she had directed, and this question
was decided in favor of the trustee. The prmmples of this decision
apply in the case on trial. J. W. Ladd’s intentions were to place the
trust property beyond the reach of probate administration, and. to
secure the advantages of such a sale as his trustee and his own associ-
ates in the enterprise in which the property had been earned might
approve and be able to make. In a letter to Tilton, of December
28, 1869, he says: :

“T deem It prudent to arrange my Httle affairs, so if I should drop out it will
not necessarily bring to light matters we desire to remain dark.. If T can get

you, Willlam, and Hayward together a day or so, can arrange for any con-
tingency.”

It was, therefore, an important consideration with J. W. Ladd that
his affairs should be so arranged that his death might not lead to a
. disclosure of matters that it was important to all the parties cou-
cerned should “remain dark.” And this trust was carried out in
.good faith, precisely as the trustor intended, and it does not appear
that the county court has ever disapproved what has been done.

But, if complainants’ contention is conceded, that the death of J.
W. Ladd revoked the power of Hayward as to said Ladd’s stock, and
thenceforth the control and disposition of this stock was in the exec-
utors of the estate, subject to the direction and control of the probate
court, this in no wise affects the accounting for which this suit is
brought. The recovery of this stock is not involved in this proceed-
ing; but an accounting is sought for its value, and in this accounting
complainants admit that they should be charged with the pro’ceeds of
the Hayward sale received by the estate. It is obvious that, in the
matter of an accounting, the value of the property to be accounted for
is not in the least affected by the question of legal formality or power
of sale. That question could only be material where the value of the
property or the price for which it was sold is claimed to have been
affected by doubts as to the power of the trustee to make sale in the
absence of authority by the county court; but this is not such a case,

The contention of the complainants is (1) that the sale in this case

80 F.—561 .
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was unauthorized because the county court did not order it, and,
being unauthorized, W, 8. Ladd must be held as for a conversion, and
the title of the estate allowed to attach to such shares of Oregon
Steam Navigation stock as W. S, Ladd is found to have been possessed
of at any time after the sale to an amount equal to what was sold
by Hayward of the stock of the estate; or (2) that the value of the
stock sold is to be determined by the highest price at which stock
of this character was sold at any subsequent time. There is no
relation whatever between these two propositions. They serve,
however, the single purpose of enabling Mrs. Hiller to share in the
profits of what is known as the “Villard deal,”—a deal which was had
some seven years after the Hayward sale, and by means of which the
stock of the Oregon Steam Navigation Company, sold by Hayward
in April, 1872, at $40 per share, one-half in cash-and the other half in
bonds of the Northern Pacific Railroad Company, repurchased by the
pool in the fall of 1875 at $15 and $13 per share, was sold by the pool
to Villard in May, 1879, at $100 per share, one-half cash and the re-
mainder in stocks and bonds. As already suggested, the standard
by which the value of this stock is determined does not depend upon
an order of the probate court. Upon an accounting, the only ques-
tion is one of value. Has this stock been accounted for to the estate?
To what is the estate entitled, in equity, that it has not recetved? It
is not questioned but that the Hayward sale was a good one at the
time. It was so regarded by the owners of the stock of the Oregon
Steam Navigation Company, who spoke of it as a very desirable sale.
It was made in good faith, The Oregon Steam Navigation Com-
pany’s line was menaced at the time with the construction of the
Northern Pacific road down the Columbia. The building of the rail-
road involved the destruction of the navigation company as a prop-
erty.. The owners of the stock in question, including J. W. Ladd,
were apprehensive that their investments would become practically
lost. - They henceforth devoted themselves to the effort to sell their
stock in a lump. All the facts in evidence tend to show that the
pool acted with prudence, and that the sale was in fact “a desirable
one.” TUnder the conditions as they existed, the sale realized the
value of the stock sold. It was a matter of regret to the members of
the pool that the purchaser refused to take more than three-fourths
of the stock offered. No question is made as to the fact that the
Hayward sale realized the full value of the stock at the time, and the
testimony shows beyond question that the sale was in pursuance of
the plans formed in the lifetime of J. W. Ladd, and to which he was
a party.

But there are other considerations in the way of any relief to the
complainant. Upon the contention that W. 8. Ladd should have pre-
vented the sale by Hayward, in his capacity of executor or trustee
for Mrs. Hiller, or both, the fact appears that the part taken by W. 8.
Ladd in the execution of the will of J. W. Ladd was merely per
functory. He was residing in Portland. Mrs. Hiller and Joseph
French, two of the three executors, resided in San Francisco. They
were active in the administration of the estate. The lawyer engaged
to act ag legal adviser was E. E. Haft, who had been the legal ad-
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viser of J. W. Ladd. Bat it is urged in Mrs. Hiller’s behalf that she
was weak, inexperienced in business, confiding in others, and espe-
cially in W 8. Ladd, and was ignorant of her husband’s ownership of
the stock in questlon It does not appear, however, that her ig-
norance, if she was ignorant, is attributable to W. 8. Ladd, or that he
knew of it. It does appear, from the testimony of Charles Tilton,
that several months before the sale was finally made, and while it
was in contemplation, she discussed it with Tilton, and said it would
increase the value of her half of the estate. In a letter written to
W. 8. Ladd on June 4, 1872, just before her departure for Europe, she
says, “I am much pleased with the late sales, and to have things set-
tled up before going away.” There was no other sale or transaction
to which this letter could refer than the one in question, and she
attempts no explanation of these statements. It is shown that she
knew in her husband’s lifetime that he owned this stock. In the sum-
mer of 1870, J. W. Ladd and his wife, the complainant, were in Den-
ver, where they had gone in consequence of the former’s failing
health. On the 13th of June, complainant wrote a letter to Charles
Tilton entreating him to come to Denver and go back with them to
San Francisco. J. W. Ladd’s health was failing, and he was de-
spondent and homesick, and his wife was anxious to have some one
there whose presence WouI'd “cheer him.” Tilton thereupon went to
Denver, and accompanied J. W. Ladd and complainant to San Fran-
cisco, and he testifies that on that occasion he told both J. W. Ladd
and complainant of Ainsworth’s failure to make the sale of Naviga-
tion stock (the first negotiations for the sale of the stock of the pool
were conducted by Ainsworth, and were unsoccessful); that they
understood it fully, and were both very much disappointed. There
is no contradiction of this testimony, and it is very natural that these
three persons should, under the circumstances, have discussed mat-
ters of business in which they were all deeply concerned. Tilton
also testifies that, after the death of J. W. Ladd, the complainant
Mrs. Hiller came East, in April, 1871, and remained there a month
or two. During this time, Tilton saw her quite often. He testifies
that she spoke of her stock. Both were interested in the subject.
She inquired of him what he thought she could get for it. There
is other testimony showing knowledge of this stock on Mrs. Hiller’s
part. In a letter by W. 8. Ladd, written in March, 1871, to Tilton,
he speaks of the Hayward note for $190,000, and says it ‘will all be
arranged; that his brother (J. W. talked to both himself and
“Sadie” (Mrs. Hiller) about it. None of this testimony is contradict-
ed by Mrg, Hiller. She was particularly examined as to this knowl-
edge on her part, and testified as follows:

“Q. In this forecast of death,—this gradual approaching death of your hus-
band,—did he not discuss with you the fact, and how you were to be left, and
what ‘would be your means of livelihood? A. It would be natural for him to.
Q. Yes, I think it would be natural. But the fact is, did he? A. Well, 1
could not give any exact words, or anything of that sort, but I would not say
that he did not, because it is more than probable that he did. Q. You had no
particular property when you married him, had you? A. No, sir. Q. Then
did he not give you some idea in what his wealth or income-making property
consisted? A. Yes, sir, I think he did; but I could not tell you now.”
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In‘the correspondence between W. S.'Ladd and complainant ap-
pear statements that imply a knowledge of the matters in question
on Mrs, Hiller’s part. In one of these letters, written by 'W. 8.
Ladd to Mrs. Hiller, on May 27, 1872, the writer says:

‘“The interest on your half of the bonds will be some $4,577.10. What may

be realized from the balance cannot now say, but, as before stated, I will advise
you when can do 80.”

- There was not a single bond of any kind in the inventory of the
estate, and there were no bonds to which this letter could refer other
than those derived from the Hayward sale, the proceeds of which
were covered by the $190,000 Hayward note. That note was in-
ventoried as an asset of the estate,-and was in lieu of the proceeds of
that sale, of which these bonds were a part, as it had been of the
stock in Hayward’s hands before the sale. Unless Mrs, Hiller under-
stood this, the reference in this letter to her half “of the bonds”
wouldghave been inexplicable. The language of this letter implies

an understanding between the parties as to these bonds, and it can-
not' be reconciled with any theory of deception upon the part of one
of the partles or of ignorance upon the part of the other.

There is testimony, as has been seen, tending to show that among
the reasons for the transfer of stock of the Oregon Steam Navigation
Company to Hayward by Ainsworth, Thompson, Reed, and the two
Ladds, was the desire to conceal the interest of these owners, and
thus avmd or make it easier to compromise, liability in certam
pending or threatened litigation, and that these mattprs were, in
fact, compromised by payments for which the different owners of
stock were assessed. As to these matters, Mrs. Hiller testifies that
she presumes she was familiar with them at the time, and in one
of her answers, she says: “Yes, sir. I have heard of O. 8. N. stock,
and of those sorts of things before” When asked if she did not
know at the time of the Northern Pacific sale—or what is known as
the “Jay Cooke deal”—that she had some of the O. 8. N. stock, or
an interest in some, she answered: “Well, I presume I knew at
that time. My letters will show.” XLater in her testimony she says
she cannot tell whether she knew that certain bonds of the Northern
Pacific Railroad Company, which she thinks or presumes she had,
came from the sale of Oregon Steam Navigation Company stock;
that she is not sure that she did not know, and has no impression
on the subject; that she supposes she had a talk with Mr. Tilton
about it, but don’t know as to that. If this testimony, taken as a
whole, is given a construction most favorable to Mrs. Hiller, it
amounts to a denial of any recollection as to whether or not she knew
of the ownership of this stock by her husband’s estate at the time
the estate was being settled up in 1872. 'When she is asked the
question as to such knowledge, she answers, “I could not tell you,
now, whether I knew it then or not.” If there was nothing to show
that she had knowledge, her inability to say that she was without it
would preclude relief to her upon the ground of ignorance. In other
words, she cannot recover on the ground of ignorance unless she was
1gnorant and, if she does not know that she was ignorant, no one else
can know it. The court cannot find that she was ignorant against
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her own denial of any recollection on the subject;. and when, in
another part of her testimony, she says that she thinks it more than
probable that her husband, when his death was 1mpend1ng, discussed
his business affairs with her, and that she thinks he gave her an
idea of what his income-paying property consisted, the conclusion
that she knew of the existence of this stock and that Hayward held
it for her husband, and that as one of the executors of her hushand’s
estate she acquiesced in its sale, becomes irresistible. This festi-
meny supplements that of her letter to W. 8, Ladd expressing her
satisfaction at the. late sales, and the opportunity thus afforded for
a settlement of her husband’s estate, and it corroborates the testi-
mony of Tilton and of members of W. 8. Ladd’s family, who testified
in the case, to statements by Mrs. Hiller, showing her knowledge,
although corroboration, in the absence of contradiction, is not neces-
sary.

1t is true that, after the 15th of May, 1872, W. 8. Ladd was in-
vested by her deed with a trust to manage her affairs for her; but
this trust did not involve an assumption by him of the responsibility
devolving upon Mrs. Hiller as executor of her husband’s estate. She
and French were active in the administration of the estate prior to
her departure for Europe. She controlled the selection of an attor-
ney for the estate, and declined to permit the employment of Gen.
Barnes, because she thought his charges would be too great. The
inventory of the estate was made and filed before W. 8. Ladd
qualified as executor, and it included the Hayward note for $190,000,
given by Hayward to J. W. Ladd as a cover for the latter’s stock, as
one of the assets of the estate. These were her acts jointly with
French. W. 8. Ladd was in the meantime in Portland, and, so far
as appears, did not attempt to control or influence the action of
the San Francisco executors. As to this ground of her complaint,
Mrs. Hiller is in the attitude of trying to recover from the representa-
tives of W. 8. Ladd, because he did not prevent the execution of a
trust created by her husband, although what was done was of ad-
vantage to her husband’s estate, and was to her interest, and was
with her acquiescence. If the death of J. W. Ladd revoked the trust
in Hayward, and subjected the shares in his hands to administration
in the probate court, so that the sale subsequently made without an
order of the probate court was illegal, then it is Hayward who is
liable. ~If the liability results as a matter of law from the acts of
Hayward, he, and not W. 8, Ladd, must account. Why has no
claim been preferred against him? Why should W. 8. Ladd’s repre-
sentatives be proceeded against, because he, with the complainant
and French, permitted Hayward to sell this property, while the
party whose act furnishes the ground of complaint is not called to
account?

Upon the sale to Villard in 1879 of the 950 shares of Oregon
Steam Navigation stock belonging to the estate of J. W. Ladd, these
shares being Mrs, Hiller’s half of the unsold one-fourth of the 7,600
shares in Hayward’s hands after the Jay Cooke sale, W. 8. Ladd rep-
resented to Mrs. Hiller that these shares realized $50 per share, and
no more. He concealed from her the fact that she was entitled to
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an additional $50 per share of the stock sold in stocks and bonds.
Mrs. Hiller became acquainted with this deception in January, 1880,
and requested W. 8, Ladd to forward these stocks and bonds to her.
This he did, with a frank acknowledgment that he had not disclosed
to her the full consideration received for the stock sold, and an ex-
planation of the motive for his conduct. A great deal of importance
is attached to this feature of the case by the complainant, although
the matters involved were settled more than 13 years ago, and no
charge is now made in respect to them, except that this deception
shows a purpose on the part of W. 8. Ladd to defraud complainant
in the management of her affairs. The explanation which W. S,
Ladd gave to the complainant for withholding from her the full con-
sideration for which her bonds were sold is contained in his letter
to her of February, 1880, In that letter he says:

“An inspection of your account renders any remarks concerning the manage-
ment of your affairs wholly unnecessary. At the same time, such inspection
will disclose the motive which actuated me In reporting to you only the cash
transaction in the sale of the O. 8. N. Co. stock. You have drawn $151,645.18
(one hundred and fifty-one thousand six hundred and forty-five and eighteen
one-hundredths dollars), in addition to the allowance by the probate court dur-
ing the years 1871-1872 of $8,500 (eighty-five hundred dollars),—some $160,145.-
18,—and the Investments made by you so far as I have any knowledge do not
exceed $25,000 (twenty-five thousand dollars). 1 therefore conclude that,
should you become apprised of the full avails realized upon the sale referred
to, it would serve to stimulate the extravagances against which I have hereto-
fore taken pains to caution you. To prevent any complications In the event
of death, I had taken the precaution of placing the bonds and stock in a pack-
age, indicating thereon the interest I had therein as your attorney, as trustee
for legatees, and personally. Besides, your books would have disclosed the
true condition of your affairs. The trouble you seem to have taken to ascer-
tain the terms of sale were wholly unnecessary, as they are familiar to nearly
every business man in this city.”

The truth of the statements contained in this letter is not denied.
Mrs. Hiller’s fortune was being rapidly dissipated. She was con-
‘scious of her weakness in this respect, and was at times extremely
penitent on account of it. In a letter written June 16, 1875, to
W. 8. Ladd, she says:

“With regard to the $81,239, I have lived and invested the best I knew how
under all the circumstances, and if I have learned, like hundreds of others, to
shun stocks as a ‘pestilence or a ravening death,” why, I have no one but myself
to blame for any foolish act of mine. In looking back upon my whims and its
consequences, I can wring my own hands in my own little anguish, and ex-
claim, wonderingly, all to my little self (when too late), “Who'd a thought it!’
Never mind! I can console myself with the fact that but very few philoso-
phers, even, have enough common sense, or honesty, either, to last them over
night, seeing that they preach a great deal more good than they practice.”

Nearly four years later, in a letter written March 28, 1879, to
W. 8. Ladd, she says:

“No person realizes the error of my ways more keenly than does my indi
vidual self.”

And further on she adds:

“But walit a little longer, Willlam. It may not all be lost. Meanwhile T will
earnestly hope to escape out of the only loophole that is at present my salva-
tion in financial affairs. If it is ruled otherwise, you will not be apt to hear
any murmur from me about it. While, on the other hand, should there be
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a favorable Issue, 1 should only be too happy to report, and rest assured there
is no one living whose approbation I should feel! prouder to earn than yours.
This is truly the feeling I have in my heart of hearts,”

She was wasteful of her money in other ways than in the purchase
of stocks. When she went abroad she took a valet with her, and
within a short time she lost $2,000 in a bank failare. On this trip
she loaned $2,000 to a French doctor, who was a casual acquaintance,
and lost it. At the same time she expended $2,000 for laces, and
was talking of keeping a carriage. She described herself as “a gay
widow” and an “extravagant piece.” Tilton wrote to her that she
would soon be at the “end of her pile” These extravagances were
the subject of comments in'the correspondence between W. 8. Ladd,
Tilton, and French, Even after her marriage, it was suggested in
the letters between Ladd and Tilton that they would yet have her
to support. Upon her return from Europe in 1874, Tilton suggested
to W. 8. Ladd, so he testifies, that he should “cover” some of her
property, because, if he did not, he would have her on his hands to
support. The fact is suggestive that, notwithstanding her state-
ment in her letter to W. 8. Ladd of June 16, 1875, that she had learn-
ed to shun stocks as a pestilence or ravening death, yet, in her letter
of March 28, 1879, she unmistakably indicates that she has again -
gone into the whirlpool of stock gambling as the only “loophole” of
“gsalvation” in her “financial affairs,” and that this was upon the eve
of the Villard sale. The suggestion of Tilton to “cover” something
for her would have especial weight in this state of affairs, and the
Villard sale seemed to offer the last opportunity to save something,
for at least the present, out of the wreck of her fortune. It is not
disputed that she had, as stated in the letter of W. 8. Ladd, expend-
ed above $160,000. It was hers to spend, but if he intended to with-
hold from her a remnant of her estate, while she was in the act of
throwing dice, however temporary the effect might be, she cannot
complain. The statement in his letter that nearly every business
man in the city was familiar with the terms of the Villard deal, is
probably true.” Certainly the terms of that deal were not confined
to a few persons. They were known to all the members of the pool
on the one side, and to all those interested with Villard on the other.
The street knew all about the Villard deal, and it was not possible
that the complainant and her husband could very long be ignorant
of it, or that W. 8. Ladd could have supposed so. The books kept
for Mrs. Hiller and for Ladd himself disclosed it. So did the books
of Ladd & Tilton. Quackenbush, the cashier of Ladd & Tilton, tes
tifies that he remembers distinctly the receipt of the stock and bonds
that belonged to Mrs. Hiller, and that they were placed in an en
velope, and put in the tin box where Mrs. Hiller’s papers were kept,
and marked “W. 8. Ladd, Trustee.” He knew to whom they be-
longed. W. 8. Ladd wrote to Tilton, saying that, if anything should
happen to him (Ladd), Tilton would always find the tin trunk ir
Ladd’s safe, containing Mrs. Hiller's matters, and he requested Til
ton in such an event to go to Quackenbush and get the key and at-
tend to it himself. All this was arranged with the thoughtfulness
of a prudent business man. The evidence of the ownership of Mrs.
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Hiller of these stocks and bonds was thus carefully provided, and
such instructions given as to avoid the possibility of mistake, and
prevent any confusion of this trust property with his own. As stat-
ed in his own letters to Tilton, written with evident sincerity, and in
the confidence that existed between them, he was doing for his
brother’s widow what he should have expected his brother to do for
his own. There is much evidence bearing conclusively upon the
question of the good faith of W. 8. Ladd, but the matter is left so
tree from doubt upon the facts already counsidered that further com-
ment i8 unnecessary.

The cortention that it was the duty of W. 8. Ladd to take com-
plainant into the repurchase pool, which led to the Villard deal,
shows, after all, the end sought in the suit. It is to this end that
the claim was made that none of the stock of J. W. Ladd had in
fact been sold to Jay Cooke. In this way it was sought to trace
this stock in the subsequent sale to Villard. 8o, too, of the claim
that, in any event, W. 8. Ladd, having funds, as is claimed, belong-
ing to J. W. Ladd’s estate in his hands, available for that purpose,
it was his duty to have preserved an interest in the repurchase scheme
for the estate, It does not appear, however, that there were funds
‘of the estate in the hands of W. 8. Ladd available for any such pur-
pose. If there were such, it does not follow that W. 8. Ladd should
have employed them in this way. Nor does it appear that W. 8.
Ladd in any way controlled the repurchase pool, or that he could have
secured an interest for the estate, unless he devoted his own interest
to that object. There was no obligation upon him to take the estate
into the pool, if he could have done so. He may as well have been
expected to share in all hig other investments with the estate. There
was no connection between the sale to Jay Cooke and the repur-
chase and sale to Villard. There was an interval of years between
the two. Wright and Villard were both interested in the latter,
and had nothing to do with the former, while Hayward, who was a
member of the first pool, was not concerned with the second. The
question as to who should comprise the pool could not, in the nature
of things, be determined by one member. It was a matter for all
concerned, and only those were included who could serve their joint
interests. a . '

The court is asked to decree against the writing by which Mrs.
Hiller agreed to a construction of her husband’s will by which she
received but one-half of the entire estate, instead of three-fourths.
Since by the laws of California she was entitled to one-half as com-
munity property, without the will, it is contended that, under the
will, she should have one-half of the rémaining half. This agree-
ment was executed in May, 1872, and final distribution of the estate
was had by order of the probate court of San Francisco in September
of that year. If this decree of distribution is not final, still this
court has no jurisdiction. It is a matter exclusively of probate ju-
risdiction, over which no court of equity has cognizance. This is
settled by a long line of cases, including the case of In re Broderick’s
Will, 21 Wall. 503. The agreement was in effect a stipulation for
the action of the probate court in making its decree.” It is merely
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the means to the proceedings that have taken place, and neither
those proceedings nor the subject to which they relate are cognizable
here. And, besides this, in a matter within the equity jurisdiction,
this court would still be bound by the decree of distribution that has
been made. It certainly will not be contended that this court can
cancel, set aside, or modify ‘the decree of distribution made by the
probate-court of San Francisco. No more can it compel an account
for what has been received under that distribution, for that would
be to annul the decree of probate by indirection, and make a de-
cree of distribution of its own. I am of the opinion that the claim
made at this late day as to the agreement by which the will was
construed is merely to reinforce the other grounds of complaint.
Mrs. Hiller cannot and does not pretend ignorance for more than 20
years of the agreement of May 16, 1872, and of what was done in
pursuance thereof. Furthermore, T am of opinion that she knew
what her husband’s wishes were in respect to a division of this prop-
erty. In July, 1871, sbe discussed with Tilton the proposed sale
of stock, and said it would increase the value of her half of the es-
tate. If it was then in her mind that she was the owner of three-
fourths of the entire estate,~—one-half as her community share, and
half of the remaining half' as legatee,—it is not probable that she
would have expressed herself in this way. The proposed sale would
have benefited her community balf in equal proportion with the oth-
er, and it amounted .to twice as much in value. In the will the
words “one-half my estate” were used, in my opinion, in their gen-
eral acceptation, by which is included the entire property accumu-
lated, managed, and used as a single property by the deceased. It
is said that by such an interpretation, Mrs. Hiller takes nothing un-
der the will; but the will gives to the community property the sep-
arate property of the husband ewned by him at the time of the mar-
riage. How much that was does not appear; but it was assumed
in the case that the husband was possessed of property at that time,
while the wife had none. But, whatever the fact may be as to this,
the other objections to the relief sought as to the distribution that
has been made are conclusive. ‘

The question of limitation of Mrs. Hiller’s right of suit by reason
of her delay in bringing it is not considered. But her delay, un-
der the circumstances, affects thé question of her good faith. The
facts upon which she bases her claim for relief were known to her
for more than 20 years before this suit was begun. She knew that
her husband owned the 7,600 shares of Oregon Steam Navigation
Stock in Hayward’s possession, and the object of that trust. She
not only knew of the proposed sale, but she kept informed of the
progress of the negotiations in respect to it. She was disappointed
when Ainsworth failed to make the sale in her husband’s lifetime,
and in May, 1872, was pleased that the sale had been effected. She
was an intimate friend of Hayward’s, and, as one of the executors of
her husband’s estate, knew that the inventory, prepared and filed by
herself and French, before W. 8. Ladd qualified as executor, in-
cluded a note of Hayward’s for $190,000. Hayward could not have
forgotten that note, nor have been ignorant of the fact that it ap-



